
 

  

 

 

NOTTINGHAM CITY HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD COMMISSIONING SUB 
COMMITTEE 

 

 
Date: Wednesday, 13 September 2017 
 
Time:  3.00 pm 
 
Place: LH2.17 Loxley House, Station Street, Nottingham NG2 3NG 
 
Contact: Jane Garrard   Direct Dial: 0115 8764315 
 
 

   
1  APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE  

 
 

2  DECLARATIONS OF INTERESTS  
 

 

3  MINUTES  
To confirm the minutes of the meeting held on 26 July 2017 
 

3 - 4 

4  BETTER CARE FUND QUARTERLY PERFORMANCE REPORT  
 

5 - 30 

5  BETTER CARE FUND 2016/17 PRE AUDIT OUTTURN  
 

To follow 

6  IMPROVED BETTER CARE FUND 2 - 2017/18 QUARTER 1 RETURN  
 

To follow 

7  BETTER CARE FUND 2017-2019 PLAN  
 

To follow 

 
The Nottingham City Health and Wellbeing Board Commissioning Sub Committee is a 
partnership body whose role includes providing advice and guidance to the Health and 
Wellbeing Board in relation to strategic priorities, joint commissioning and commissioned 
spend; performance management of the Board’s commissioning plan; and taking strategic 
funding decisions relating to the Better Care Fund and domestic violence pooled budgets.  
 
Members: 
 
Voting members 
Katy Ball City Council Director of Commissioning and 

Procurement 
Councillor Nick McDonald City Council Portfolio Holder with a remit 

covering health 
Dr Marcus Bicknell NHS Nottingham City Clinical Commissioning 

Group representative 
 

Public Document Pack



 

 

Maria Principe NHS Nottingham City Clinical Commissioning 
Group Director of Cluster Development and 
Performance 

 
Non-voting members 
Christine Oliver City Council Head of Commissioning 
Alison Challenger City Council Director of Public Health 
Colin Monckton City Council Director of Strategy and Policy 
Lucy Anderson NHS Nottingham City Clinical Commissioning 

Group Assistant Director – Mental Health and 
Community Services 

Martin Gawith Healthwatch Nottingham representative 
 

IF YOU NEED ANY ADVICE ON DECLARING AN INTEREST IN ANY ITEM ON THE 
AGENDA, PLEASE CONTACT THE GOVERNANCE OFFICER SHOWN ABOVE, IF 
POSSIBLE BEFORE THE DAY OF THE MEETING  
 

CITIZENS ATTENDING MEETINGS ARE ASKED TO ARRIVE AT LEAST 15 MINUTES 
BEFORE THE START OF THE MEETING TO BE ISSUED WITH VISITOR BADGES 
 
CITIZENS ARE ADVISED THAT THIS MEETING MAY BE RECORDED BY MEMBERS 
OF THE PUBLIC. ANY RECORDING OR REPORTING ON THIS MEETING SHOULD 
TAKE PLACE IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE COUNCIL’S POLICY ON RECORDING AND 
REPORTING ON PUBLIC MEETINGS, WHICH IS AVAILABLE AT 
WWW.NOTTINGHAMCITY.GOV.UK. INDIVIDUALS INTENDING TO RECORD THE 
MEETING ARE ASKED TO NOTIFY THE GOVERNANCE OFFICER SHOWN ABOVE IN 
ADVANCE.



 

1 

NOTTINGHAM CITY HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD COMMISSIONING SUB 
COMMITTEE 
 
MINUTES of the meeting held at Standard Court, Park Row, Nottingham, NG1 
6GN on 26 July 2017 from 3.50 pm - 4.10 pm 
 
Membership 
Voting Members 

 

Present Absent 
Katy Ball 
Dr Marcus Bicknell 
Councillor Nick McDonald 
Maria Principe (Chair) 
 

 
 

Non Voting Members 
Present Absent 
Alison Challenger                             Lucy Anderson 
Christine Oliver Martin Gawith 
 Colin Monckton  
 
Colleagues, partners and others in attendance:  
 
Clare Gilbert 
 
Jane Garrard 

- Commissioning Lead – Adults, Nottingham City 
Council 

- Senior Governance Officer 
 
 
99  APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 

 
None 
 
 
100  DECLARATIONS OF INTERESTS 

 
None 
 
 
101  MINUTES 

 
The minutes of the meeting held on 8 March 2017 were agreed as an accurate 
record and signed by the Chair. 
 
 
102  HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD COMMISSIONING SUB COMMITTEE 

TERMS OF REFERENCE 
 

Jane Garrard, Senior Governance Officer, informed the Sub Committee that this 
change related to taking on the oversight role in relation to the Section 75 Agreement 
for the Tier 2 Child and Adolescent Mental Health Services, and that the Terms of 
Reference for the Health and Wellbeing Board Commissioning Sub Committee were 

Page 3

Agenda Item 3



Health and Wellbeing Board Commissioning Sub Committee - 26.07.17 

2 

being fully refreshed and proposals would be bought back for consideration in due 
course. 
 
RESOLVED to note the revised Terms of Reference for the Health and 
Wellbeing Board Commissioning Sub Committee. 
 
 
103  BETTER CARE FUND QUARTERLY PERFORMANCE REPORT 

 
Maria Principe, Director of Contracting and Transformation, introduced the report 
outlining the Better Care Fund performance metrics for quarter 3 of 2016/17.  She 
highlighted that as at quarter 3 all of the national conditions were being met but some 
of the metrics, for example ‘reduction in non-elective admissions, were off target.   
 
RESOLVED to 
 
(1) note the performance in relation to the Better Care Fund metrics for quarter 

3 of 2016/17; and 
 

(2) note the quarterly return which was submitted to NHS England on 08/03/17 
and was authorised virtually by the then Health and Wellbeing Board Chair 
Councillor Alex Norris and Vice Chair Dr Marcus Bicknell. 

 
 
104  FUTURE MEETING DATES 

 
RESOLVED to review scheduling of future meetings, in line with the current 
refresh of the Sub Committee’s Terms of Reference. 
 
 
105  EXCLUSION OF THE PUBLIC 

 
RESOLVED to exclude the public from the meeting during consideration of the 
remaining item in accordance with Section 100A(4) of the Local Government 
Act 1972 on the basis that, having regard to all the circumstances, the public 
interest in maintaining the exemption outweighed the public interest in 
disclosing the information. 
 
 
106  BETTER CARE FUND UPDATE 

 
RESOLVED to agree the recommendation as set out in the report. 
 

Page 4



 

 

HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD COMMISSIONING SUB-COMMITTEE 

13 SEPTEMBER 2017 

 Report for Information 

Title: 
 

Better Care Fund Quarterly Performance Report 

Lead officer(s): 
 

Maria Principe, Director of Contracting and 
Transformation, Nottingham City Clinical Commissioning 
Group 

Author and contact details for 
further information: 
 

Petra Davis, Project Officer, Out of Hospital Care, 
Nottingham City Clinical Commissioning Group and 
Nottingham City Council 

Brief summary: 
 

This report provides information in relation to the Better 
Care Fund (BCF) performance metrics for Quarter 4 
2016/17 

Is any of the report exempt 
from publication? 
If yes, include reason 

No 

 

Recommendation to the Health and Wellbeing Board Commissioning Sub-Committee: 
 
The Health and Wellbeing Board Commissioning Sub-Committee is asked to: 
 
a) note the performance in relation to the Better Care Fund performance metrics for Quarter 

4 2016/17; and 
 
b) note the quarterly return which was submitted to NHS England on 20.06.17 and was 

authorised virtually by the Health and Wellbeing Board Chair – Cllr Nick McDonald, and 
Vice Chair, Dr Marcus Bicknell 

 

 

Contribution to Joint Health and Wellbeing Strategy: 

Health and Wellbeing Strategy aims and 
outcomes 

Summary of contribution to the Strategy 

Aim: To increase healthy life expectancy in 
Nottingham and make us one of the 
healthiest big cities 

The main objectives of our Better Care Fund 
Plan are to: - 
 
- Remove false divides between physical, 
psychological and social needs  
- Focus on the whole person, not the 
condition  
- Support citizens to thrive, creating 
independence - not dependence 
 - Services tailored to need - hospital will be 
a place of choice, not a default  
- Not incur delays, people will be in the best 
place to meet their need  
 
The ultimate vision is that in five years’ time 
care would be so well integrated that the 
citizen has no visibility of the 

Aim: To reduce inequalities in health by 
targeting the neighbourhoods with the lowest 
levels of healthy life expectancy 

Outcome 1: Children and adults in 
Nottingham adopt and maintain healthy 
lifestyles 

Outcome 2: Children and adults in 
Nottingham will have positive mental 
wellbeing and those with long-term mental 
health problems will have good physical 
health 

Outcome 3: There will be a healthy culture in 
Nottingham in which citizens are supported 
and empowered to live healthy lives and 

Page 5

Agenda Item 4



 

 

manage ill health well organisations/different parts of the system 
delivering it.  
 
By 2020, the aspiration is that: -  
- People will be living longer, more 
independent and better quality lives, 
remaining at home for as long as possible  
- People will only be in hospital if that is the 
best place – not because there is nowhere 
else to go  
- Services in the community will allow 
patients to be rapidly discharged from 
hospital  
- New technologies will help people to self-
care - The workforce will be trained to offer 
more flexible care  
- People will understand and access the right 
services in the right place at the right time.  
 
The most fundamental changes that citizens 
will experience will result from the adoption 
of models of integration that make a person’s 
journey through the system of care as simple 
as possible, and encourage shared decision 
making. 

Outcome 4: Nottingham’s environment will 
be sustainable – supporting and enabling its 
citizens to have good health and wellbeing 

How mental health and wellbeing is being championed in line with the Health and 
Wellbeing Board’s aspiration to give equal value to mental and physical health 

A core element of the Integrated Care model is the integration of mental health services 
which is being progressed through the Mental Health Integration Steering Group. This 
steering group oversees a work plan which will be supported by task and finish groups. 
Clinical assurance has been delegated to the Clinical Strategic Commissioning Group. 
Commissioning assurance has been delegated to the Mental Health Joint Commissioning 
Group. 
 

 

Reason for the decision: 
 

n/a 

Total value of the decision: 
 

n/a 

Financial implications and comments: 
 

Quarterly finance is included within the 
appendix attached to this report. The 
reported financial position aligns to the 
Quarterly Budget Monitoring Reports 
presented to Commissioning Sub 
Committee. 

Procurement implications and comments 
(including where relevant social value 
implications): 
 

n/a 

Other implications and comments, 
including legal, risk management, crime 
and disorder: 

n/a 

Equalities implications and comments: n/a 

Page 6



 

 

(has an Equality Impact Assessment been 
completed?  If not, why?) 

Published documents referred to in the 
report: 
e.g. legislation, statutory guidance, previous Sub 
Committee reports and minutes 

Nottingham City BCF Quarterly Return - 
Quarter 1 2016/17  
Nottingham City BCF Quarterly Return - 
Quarter 2 2016/17 
Nottingham City BCF Quarterly Return - 
Quarter 3 2016/17  

Background papers relied upon in writing 
the report: 
Documents which disclose important facts or 
matters on which the decision has been based 
and have been relied on to a material extent in 
preparing the decision.  This does not include any 
published works e.g. previous Board reports or 
any exempt documents. 

 

None 

Other options considered and rejected: 
 

n/a 

 

 

 

 

Page 7



This page is intentionally left blank



Quarterly Reporting Template - Guidance

Notes for Completion
The data collection template requires the Health & Wellbeing Board to track through the high level metrics and deliverables from the Health & Wellbeing Board Better Care 
Fund plan.

The completed return will require sign off by the Health & Wellbeing Board.

A completed return must be submitted to the Better Care Support Team inbox (england.bettercaresupport@nhs.net) by midday on 31st May 2017.

The BCF Q4 Data Collection
This Excel data collection template for Q4 2016-17 focuses on budget arrangements, the national conditions, non-elective admissions, income and expenditure to and from 
the fund, and performance on BCF metrics. 

To accompany the quarterly data collection Health & Wellbeing Boards are required to provide a written narrative into the final tab to contextualise the information provided 
in this report and build on comments included elsewhere in the submission. This should include an overview of progress with your BCF plan, the wider integration of health 
and social care services, and a consideration of any variances against planned performance trajectories or milestones.

Cell Colour Key

Data needs inputting in the cell
Pre-populated cells
Question not relevant to you

Throughout this template cells requiring a numerical input are restricted to values between 0 and 100,000,000.

Content
The data collection template consists of 9 sheets:

Checklist - This contains a matrix of responses to questions within the data collection template.
1) Cover Sheet - this includes basic details and tracks question completion.
2) Budget arrangements - this tracks whether Section 75 agreements are in place for pooling funds.
3) National Conditions - checklist against the national conditions as set out in the BCF Policy Framework 16-17 and BCF planning guidance.
4) Income and Expenditure - this tracks income into, and expenditure from, pooled budgets over the course of the year.
5) Supporting Metrics - this tracks performance against the two national metrics, a DTOC metric, a Non-Elective Admissions metric, locally set metric and locally defined 
patient experience metric in BCF plans.
6) Year End Feedback - a series of questions to gather feedback on impact of the BCF in 2016-17

7) Additional Measures - additional questions on new metrics that are being developed to measure progress in developing integrated, cooridnated, and person centred care.
8) Narrative - this allows space for the description of overall progress on BCF plan delivery and performance against key indicators.

Checklist
This sheet contains all the validations for each question in the relevant sections.
All validations have been coloured so that if a value does not pass the validation criteria the cell will be Red and contain the word "No" and if they pass validation they will be 
coloured Green and contain the word "Yes".

1) Cover Sheet
On the cover sheet please enter the following information:
The Health and Well Being Board
Who has completed the report, email and contact number in case any queries arise
Please detail who has signed off the report on behalf of the Health and Well Being Board

Question completion tracks the number of questions that have been completed, when all the questions in each section of the template have been completed the cell will 
turn green. Only when all 7 cells are green should the template be sent to england.bettercaresupport@nhs.net 

Page 9



2) Budget Arrangements

This section requires the Health & Wellbeing Board to confirm if funds have been pooled via a Section 75 agreement. Please answer as at the time of completion.

If it had not been previously stated that the funds had been pooled can you now confirm that they have now?
If the answer to the above is 'No' please indicate when this will happen

3) National Conditions
This section requires the Health & Wellbeing Board to confirm whether the eight national conditions detailed in the Better Care Fund Policy Framework 16/17 
(https://www.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/490559/BCF_Policy_Framework_2016-17.pdf) and Better Care Fund Planning Guidance 
16/17 (http://www.england.nhs.uk/ourwork/part-rel/transformation-fund/bcf-plan/) have been met through the delivery of your plan. Please answer as at the time of 
completion.

It sets out the eight conditions and requires the Health & Wellbeing Board to confirm  'Yes', 'No' or 'No - In Progress' that these have been met. Should 'No' or 'No - In 
Progress' be selected, please provide an estimated date when condition will be met, an explanation as to why the condition was not met within the year (in-line with signed 
off plan) and how this is being addressed.

Full details of the conditions are detailed at the bottom of the page.

4) Income & Expenditure
This tracks income into, and expenditure from, pooled budgets over the course of the year. This requires provision of the following information:

Forecasted income into the pooled fund for each quarter of the 2016-17 financial year
Actual income into the pooled fund in Q1 to Q4 2016-17
Forecasted expenditure from the pooled fund for each quarter of the 2016-17 financial year
Actual expenditure from the pooled fund in Q1 to Q4 2016-17

Figures should reflect the position by the end of each quarter. It is expected that the total planned income and planned expenditure figures for 2016-17 should equal the 
total pooled budget for the Health and Wellbeing Board.

There is also an opportunity to provide a commentary on progress which should include reference to any deviation from plan or amendments to forecasts made since the 
previous quarter.

5) Supporting Metrics
This tab tracks performance against the two national supporting metrics, a Delayed Transfers of Care metric, a Non-Elective Admissions metric, the locally set metric, and the 
locally defined patient experience metric submitted in approved BCF plans. In all cases the metrics are set out as defined in the approved plan for the HWB and the following 
information is required for each metric:
An update on indicative progress against the six metrics for Q4 2016-17
Commentary on progress against each metric

If the information is not available to provide an indication of performance on a measure at this point in time then there is a drop-down option to indicate this. Should a 

Guidance on accessing CCG based NEA numerator data from SUS via the ‘Activity and Planning Report’ has been circulated in tandem with this report in order to enable areas 
to perform their own in year monitoring of NEA data. This guidance document can also be accessed via the embeded object below.

NEA denominator population (All ages) projections are based on Subnational Population Projections, Interim 2014-based (published May 2016) found here:
http://www.ons.gov.uk/peoplepopulationandcommunity/populationandmigration/populationprojections/datasets/localauthoritiesinenglandz1
Please note that the Non-Elective Admissions per 100,000 population (All ages) population projections are based on a calendar year. 

Delayed Transfers Of Care numerator data for actual performance has been sourced from the monthly DTOC return found here:
http://www.england.nhs.uk/statistics/statistical-work-areas/delayed-transfers-of-care/ 

DTOC denominator population (18+) projections are based on Subnational Population Projections, Interim 2014-based (published May 2016) found here:
http://www.ons.gov.uk/peoplepopulationandcommunity/populationandmigration/populationprojections/datasets/localauthoritiesinenglandz1
Please note that the Delayed Transfers Of Care (delayed days) from hospital per 100,000 population (aged 18+) population projections are based on a calendar year. 

Actual and baseline data on Re-ablement and Residential Admissions can be sourced from the annual ASCOF return found here:
http://content.digital.nhs.uk/searchcatalogue?productid=22085&q=ascof 

Please note these are annual measures and the latest data for 2015/16 data was published 05/10/2016. Plan data for these metrics in 2016/17 were submitted by HWBs 
within Submission 4 planning returns and final figures are displayed within the 'Remaining Metrics Enquiry' tab of the Submission 4 report.

Guide to accessing 
CCG based NEA 

data from SUS via 
   

 

Page 10

http://www.ons.gov.uk/peoplepopulationandcommunity/populationandmigration/populationprojections/datasets/localauthoritiesinenglandz1
http://www.england.nhs.uk/statistics/statistical-work-areas/delayed-transfers-of-care/
http://www.ons.gov.uk/peoplepopulationandcommunity/populationandmigration/populationprojections/datasets/localauthoritiesinenglandz1
http://content.digital.nhs.uk/searchcatalogue?productid=22085&q=ascof


6) Year End Feedback
This tab provides an opportunity to provide give additional feedback on your progress in delivering the BCF in 2016-17 through a number of survey questions. The purpose of 
this survey is to provide an opportunity for local areas to consider the impact of the first year of the BCF and to feed this back to the national team review the overall impact 
across the country. There are a total of 9 questions. These are set out below.

Part 1 - Delivery of the Better Care Fund
There are a total of 10 questions in this section. Each is set out as a statement, for which you are asked to select one of the following responses:

 - Strongly Agree
 - Agree
 - Neither Agree Nor Disagree
 - Disagree
 - Strongly Disagree

The questions are:
1. The overall delivery of the BCF has improved joint working between health and social care in our locality
2. Our BCF schemes were implemented as planned in 2016/17
3. The delivery of our BCF plan in 2016/17 had a positive impact on the integration of health and social care in our locality
4. The delivery of our BCF plan in 2016/17 has contributed positively to managing the levels of Non-Elective Admissions
5. The delivery of our BCF plan in 2016/17 has contributed positively to managing the levels of Delayed Transfers of Care
6. The delivery of our BCF plan in 2016/17 has contributed positively to managing the proportion of older people (aged 65 and over) who were still at home 91 days after 
discharge from hospital into reablement/rehabilitation services
7. The delivery of our BCF plan in 2016/17 has contributed positively to managing the rate of residential and nursing care home admissions for older people (aged 65 and 
over)

Part 2 - Successes and Challenges
There are a total of 2 questions in this section, for which up to three responses are possible. The questions are:
8. What have been your greatest successes in delivering your BCF plan for 2016-17?
9. What have been your greatest challenges in delivering your BCF plan for 2016-17?

These are free text responses, but should be assigned to one of the following categories (as used for previous BCF surveys):

1. Shared vision and commitment
2. Shared leadership and governance
3. Collaborative working relationships
4. Integrated workforce planning
5. Evidencing impact and measuring success
6. Delivering services across interfaces
7. Digital interoperatability and sharing data
8. Joint contracts and payment mechanisms 
9. Sharing risks and benefits 
10. Managing change
Other

7) Additional Measures

This tab includes a handful of new metrics designed with the intention of gathering some detailed intelligence on local progress against some key elements of person-centred, 
co-ordinated care.  Following feedback from colleagues across the system these questions have been modified from those that appeared in the last BCF Quarterly Data 
Collection Template (Q2 / Q3 2016-17). Nonetheless, they are still in draft form, and the Department of Health are keen to receive feedback on how they could be improved / 
any complications caused by the way that they have been posed.

For the question on progress towards instillation of Open APIs, if an Open API is installed and live in a given setting, please state ‘Live’ in the ‘Projected ‘go-live’ date field.
For the question on use and prevalence of Multi-Disciplinary/Integrated Care Teams please choose your answers based on the proportion of your localities within which Multi-
Disciplinary/Integrated Care Teams are in use.
For the PHB metric, areas should include all age groups, as well as those PHBs that form part of a jointly-funded package of care which may be  administered by the NHS or 
by a partner organisation on behalf of the NHS (e.g. local authority). Any jointly funded personal budgets that include NHS funding are automatically counted as a 
personal health budget.  We have expanded this definition following feedback received during the Q3 reporting process, and to align with other existing PHB data 
collections. 

8) Narrative
In this tab HWBs are asked to provide a brief narrative on overall progress, reflecting on performance in Q4 16/17. 
A recommendation would be to offer a narrative around the stocktake themes as below:
Highlights and successes
What would you consider to be your most significant area of success, or development since the last quarter? What has contributed to this improvement?
Challenges and concerns
Does the information on National Conditions and Supporting metrics point to any issues or areas of improvement? Are there any new anticipated challenges for the coming 
quarter?
Potential actions and support
What actions could be taken and what support could be offered to address performance challenges and capitalise on successes for subsequent quarters? 

Page 11



Data collection Question Completion Checklist

1. Cover

Health and Well Being Board completed by: e-mail: contact number:

Who has signed off the 
report on behalf of the 
Health and Well Being Board:

Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes

2. Budget Arrangements

Funds pooled via a S.75 pooled 
budget, by Q4? If no, date provided?
Yes

3. National Conditions

1) Plans to be jointly agreed
2) Maintain provision of 
social care services

3 i) Agreement for the 
delivery of 7-day services 
across health and social care 
to prevent unnecessary non-
elective admissions to acute 
settings and to facilitate 
transfer to alternative care 
settings when clinically 
appropriate

3 ii) Are support services, 
both in the hospital and in 
primary, community and 
mental health settings 
available seven days a week 
to ensure that the next steps 
in the patient’s care pathway, 
as determined by the daily 
consultant-led review, can be 
taken?

4 i) Is the NHS Number being 
used as the consistent 
identifier for health and 
social care services?

4 ii) Are you pursuing Open 
APIs (ie system that speak to 
each other)?

4 iii) Are the appropriate 
Information Governance 
controls in place for 
information sharing in line 
with the revised Caldicott 
Principles and guidance?

4 iv) Have you ensured that 
people have clarity about 
how data about them is used, 
who may have access and 
how they can exercise their 
legal rights?

5) Ensure a joint approach to 
assessments and care 
planning and ensure that, 
where funding is used for 
integrated packages of care, 
there will be an accountable 
professional

6) Agreement on the 
consequential impact of the 
changes on the providers 
that are predicted to be 
substantially affected by the 
plans

7) Agreement to invest in 
NHS commissioned out-of-
hospital services 

8) Agreement on a local 
target for Delayed Transfers 
of Care (DTOC) and develop a 
joint local action plan

Please Select (Yes, No or No - In 
Progress) Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes

If the answer is "No" or "No - In 
Progress" please provide an 
explanation as to why the condition 
was not met within the year (in-line 
with signed off plan) and how this is 
being addressed? Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes

4. I&E (2 parts)

Q1 2016/17 Q2 2016/17 Q3 2016/17 Q4 2016/17

Please comment if there is a 
difference between the 
annual totals and the pooled 
fund 

Forecast Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes
Forecast 1 1 1 1 1
Actual Yes Yes Yes Yes
Actual 1 1 1 1
Forecast Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes
Forecast 1 1 1 1 1
Actual Yes Yes Yes Yes
Actual 1 1 1 1
Commentary Yes
Commentary 1

Income to

Expenditure From

Better Care Fund Template Q4 2016/17

P
age 12



5. Supporting Metrics
Please provide an update on 
indicative progress against 
the metric? Commentary on progress

NEA Yes Yes
Please provide an update on 
indicative progress against 
the metric? Commentary on progress

DTOC Yes Yes
Please provide an update on 
indicative progress against 
the metric? Commentary on progress

Local performance metric Yes Yes

If no metric, please specify

Please provide an update on 
indicative progress against 
the metric? Commentary on progress

Patient experience metric Yes Yes Yes
Please provide an update on 
indicative progress against 
the metric? Commentary on progress

Admissions to residential 
care Yes Yes

Please provide an update on 
indicative progress against 
the metric? Commentary on progress

Reablement Yes Yes

6. Year End Feedback
Statement: Response:

1. The overall delivery of the BCF has 
improved joint working between 
health and social care in our locality Yes

2. Our BCF schemes were 
implemented as planned in 2016/17 Yes
3. The delivery of our BCF plan in 
2016/17 had a positive impact on the 
integration of health and social care 
in our locality Yes

4. The delivery of our BCF plan in 
2016/17 has contributed positively to 
managing the levels of Non-Elective 
Admissions Yes

5. The delivery of our BCF plan in 
2016/17 has contributed positively to 
managing the levels of Delayed 
Transfers of Care Yes

6. The delivery of our BCF plan in 
2016/17 has contributed positively to 
managing the proportion of older 
people (aged 65 and over) who were 
still at home 91 days after discharge 
from hospital into 
reablement/rehabilitation services Yes

7. The delivery of our BCF plan in 
2016/17 has contributed positively to 
managing the rate of residential and 
nursing care home admissions for 
older people (aged 65 and over) Yes

8. What have been your greatest 
successes in delivering your BCF plan 
for 2016-17? Response and category
Success 1 Yes
Success 2 Yes
Success 3 Yes

9. What have been your greatest 
challenges in delivering your BCF 
plan for 2016-17? Response and category
Challenge 1 Yes
Challenge 2 Yes
Challenge 3 Yes

P
age 13



7. Additional Measures
GP Hospital Social Care Community Mental health Specialised palliative

NHS Number is used as the 
consistent identifier on all relevant 
correspondence relating to the 
provision of health and care services 
to an individual Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes

Staff in this setting can retrieve 
relevant information about a service 
user's care from their local system 
using the NHS Number Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes

To GP To Hospital To Social Care To Community To Mental health To Specialised palliative
From GP Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes
From Hospital Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes
From Social Care Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes
From Community Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes
From Mental Health Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes
From Specialised Palliative Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes

GP Hospital Social Care Community Mental health Specialised palliative
Progress status Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes
Projected 'go-live' date (mm/yy) Yes Yes No No No No

Is there a Digital Integrated Care 
Record pilot currently underway in 
your Health and Wellbeing Board 
area? Yes

Total number of PHBs in place at the 
end of the quarter Yes
Number of new PHBs put in place 
during the quarter Yes
Number of existing PHBs stopped 
during the quarter Yes
Of all residents using PHBs at the 
end of the quarter, what proportion 
are in receipt of NHS Continuing 
Healthcare (%) Yes

Are integrated care teams (any team 
comprising both health and social 
care staff) in place and operating in 
the non-acute setting? Yes

Are integrated care teams (any team 
comprising both health and social 
care staff) in place and operating in 
the acute setting? Yes

8. Narrative
Brief Narrative Yes

P
age 14



Q4 2016/17

Health and Well Being Board

completed by:

E-Mail:

Contact Number:

Who has signed off the report on behalf of the Health and Well Being Board:

1. Cover
2. Budget Arrangements
3. National Conditions
4. I&E
5. Supporting Metrics
6. Year End Feedback
7. Additional Measures
8. Narrative

Cover

63

Nottingham

Petra Davis

petra.davis@nottinghamcity.nhs.uk

1158839432

Dr Marcus Bicknell

Question Completion - when all questions have been answered and the validation boxes below have turned green you should send the template to 
england.bettercaresupport@nhs.net saving the file as 'Name HWB' for example 'County Durham HWB'

13

1

No. of questions answered
5
1

24
19
13

P
age 15



Selected Health and Well Being Board:

Have the funds been pooled via a s.75 pooled budget? Yes

If it had not been previously stated that the funds had been pooled can you now 
confirm that they have now?

If the answer to the above is 'No' please indicate when this will happen 
(DD/MM/YYYY)

Footnotes:

Nottingham

Budget Arrangements

Source: For the S.75 pooled budget question, which is pre-populated, the data is from a previous quarterly collection returned by the HWB.

P
age 16



Selected Health and Well Being Board: Nottingham

Further details on the conditions are specified below.

Condition
Q1 Submission 

Response
Q2 Submission 

Response
Q3 Submission 

Response
Please Select (Yes 

or No)

1) Plans to be jointly agreed
Yes Yes Yes Yes

2) Maintain provision of social care services
Yes Yes Yes Yes

3) In respect of 7 Day Services - please confirm:
i) Agreement for the delivery of 7-day services across health and social care to 
prevent unnecessary non-elective admissions to acute settings and to facilitate 
transfer to alternative care settings when clinically appropriate

Yes Yes Yes Yes

ii) Are support services, both in the hospital and in primary, community and mental 
health settings available seven days a week to ensure that the next steps in the 
patient’s care pathway, as determined by the daily consultant-led review, can be 

No Yes Yes Yes

4) In respect of Data Sharing - please confirm:

i) Is the NHS Number being used as the consistent identifier for health and social care 
services?

Yes Yes Yes Yes

ii) Are you pursuing Open APIs (ie system that speak to each other)?
Yes Yes Yes Yes

iii) Are the appropriate Information Governance controls in place for information 
sharing in line with the revised Caldicott Principles and guidance?

Yes Yes Yes Yes

iv) Have you ensured that people have clarity about how data about them is used, 
who may have access and how they can exercise their legal rights?

Yes Yes Yes Yes

5) Ensure a joint approach to assessments and care planning and ensure that, where 
funding is used for integrated packages of care, there will be an accountable 
professional

Yes Yes Yes Yes

6) Agreement on the consequential impact of the changes on the providers that are 
predicted to be substantially affected by the plans

Yes Yes Yes Yes

7) Agreement to invest in NHS commissioned out-of-hospital services 
Yes Yes Yes Yes

8) Agreement on a local target for Delayed Transfers of Care (DTOC) and develop a 
joint local action plan

No - In Progress Yes Yes Yes

If 'No' or 'No - In Progress' is selected for any of the conditions please include an explanation as to why the condition was not met within the year (in-line with signed off plan) and how this is being addressed?

If the answer is 'No', please provide an explanation as to why the condition was not met within the year (in-
line with signed off plan) and how this is being addressed?

National Conditions

The Spending Round established six national conditions for access to the Fund.
Please confirm by selecting 'Yes', 'No' or 'No - In Progress' against the relevant condition as to whether these have been met, as per your final BCF plan.

P
age 17



National conditions - detailed definitions

1) Plans to be jointly agreed

2) Maintain provision of social care services

3) Agreement for the delivery of 7-day services across health and social care to 

The Better Care Fund Plan, covering a minimum of the pooled fund specified in the Spending Review, and potentially extending to the totality of the health and care spend in the Health and Wellbeing Board area, should be signed off by the Health and Wellbeing Board itself, and by the constituent Councils and Clinical 
Commissioning Groups.

In agreeing the plan, Clinical Commissioning Groups and local authorities should engage with health and social care providers likely to be affected by the use of the fund in order to achieve the best outcomes for local people. Furthermore, there should be joint agreement across commissioners and providers as to how the Better 
Care Fund will contribute to a longer term strategic plan. This should include an assessment of future capacity and workforce requirements across the system. The implications for local providers should be set out clearly for Health and Wellbeing Boards so that their agreement for the deployment of the fund includes recognition 
of the service change consequences. The Disabled Facilities Grant (DFG) will again be allocated through the Better Care Fund. Local housing authority representatives should therefore be involved in developing and agreeing the plan, in order to ensure a joined-up approach to improving outcomes across health, social care and 
housing.

The BCF policy framework for 2016-17 and BCF planning guidance sets out eight national conditions for access to the Fund:

Local areas must include an explanation of how local adult social care services will continue to be supported within their plans in a manner consistent with 2016-17.

The definition of support should be agreed locally. As a minimum, it should maintain in real terms the level of protection as provided through the mandated minimum element of local Better Care Fund agreements of 2015-16. This reflects the real terms increase in the Better Care Fund.

In setting the level of protection for social care localities should be mindful to ensure that any change does not destabilise the local social and health care system as a whole. This will be assessed compared to 2015-16 figures through the regional assurance process.

It should also be consistent with 2012 Department of Health guidance to NHS England on the funding transfer from the NHS to social care in 2013-14: 

https://www.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/213223/Funding-transfer-from-the-NHS-to-social-care-in-2013-14.pdf

Local areas are asked to confirm how their plans will provide 7-day services (throughout the week, including weekends) across community, primary, mental health, and social care in order:

• To prevent unnecessary non-elective admissions (physical and mental health) through provision of an agreed level of infrastructure across out of hospital services 7 days a week;
• To support the timely discharge of patients, from acute physical and mental health settings, on every day of the week, where it is clinically appropriate to do so, avoiding unnecessary delayed discharges of care. If they are not able to provide such plans, they must explain why.

The 10 clinical standards developed by the NHS Services, Seven Days a Week Forum represent, as a whole, best practice for quality care on every day of the week and provide a useful reference for commissioners (https://www.england.nhs.uk/wp-content/uploads/2013/12/clinical-standards1.pdf ).
By 2020 all hospital in-patients admitted through urgent and emergency routes in England will have access to services which comply with at least 4 of these standards on every day of the week, namely Standards 2, 5, 6 and 8. For the Better Care Fund, particular consideration should be given to whether progress is being made 
against Standard 9. This standard highlights the role of support services in the provision of the next steps in a person’s care pathway following admission to hospital, as determined by the daily consultant-led review, and the importance of effective relationships between medical and other health and social care teams.

P
age 18



4) Better data sharing between health and social care, based on the NHS number

5) Ensure a joint approach to assessments and care planning and ensure that, 

6) Agreement on the consequential impact of the changes on the providers that are 

7) Agreement to invest in NHS commissioned out of hospital services, which may 

This should be achieved in one of the following ways: 

- To fund NHS commissioned out-of-hospital services, which may include a wide range of services including social care, as part of their agreed Better Care Fund plan; or

- Local areas can choose to put an appropriate proportion of their share of the £1bn into a local risk-sharing agreement as part of contingency planning in the event of excess activity, with the balance spent on NHS commissioned out-of-hospital services, which may include a wide range of services including social care (local areas 
should seek, as a minimum, to maintain provision of NHS commissioned out of hospital services in a manner consistent with 15-16);

This condition replaces the Payment for Performance scheme included in the 2015-16 Better Care Fund framework.

Local areas should identify which proportion of their population will be receiving case management and named care coordinator, and which proportions will be receiving self-management help - following the principles of person-centred care planning. Dementia services will be a particularly important priority for better integrated 
health and social care services, supported by care coordinators, for example dementia advisors.

The appropriate and lawful sharing of data in the best interests of people who use care and support is essential to the provision of safe, seamless care. The use of the NHS number as a consistent identifier is an important element of this, as is progress towards systems and processes that allow the safe and timely sharing of 
information. It is also vital that the right cultures, behaviours and leadership are demonstrated locally, fostering a culture of secure, lawful and appropriate sharing of data to support better care. 

Local areas should:
• confirm that they are using the NHS Number as the consistent identifier for health and care services, and if they are not, when they plan to;
• confirm that they are pursuing interoperable Application Programming Interfaces (APIs) (i.e. systems that speak to each other) with the necessary security and controls (https://www.england.nhs.uk/wp-content/uploads/2014/05/open-api-policy.pdf; and
• ensure they have the appropriate Information Governance controls in place for information sharing in line with the revised Caldicott principles and guidance made available by the Information Governance Alliance (IGA), and if not, when they plan for it to be in place.
• ensure that people have clarity about how data about them is used, who may have access and how they can exercise their legal rights. In line with the recommendations from the National Data Guardian review.

The Information Governance Alliance (IGA) is a group of national health and care organisations (including the Department of Health, NHS England, Public Health England and the Health and Social Care Information Centre) working together to provide a joined up and consistent approach to information governance and provide 
access to a central repository guidance on data access issues for the health and care system. See - http://systems.hscic.gov.uk/infogov/iga

The impact of local plans should be agreed with relevant health and social care providers. Assurance will also be sought on public and patient and service user engagement in this planning, as well as plans for political buy-in. This should complement the planning guidance issued to NHS organisations.

There is agreement that there is much more to be done to ensure mental and physical health are considered equal and better integrated with one another, as well as with other services such as social care. Plans should therefore give due regard to this.

Local areas should agree how they will use their share of the £1 billion that had previously been used to create the payment for performance fund.

P
age 19



8)  Agreement on local action plan to reduce delayed transfers of care (DTOC)

Footnotes:
Source: For each of the condition questions which are pre-populated, the data is from the quarterly data collections previously returned by the HWB.

Given the unacceptable high levels of DTOC currently, the Government is exploring what further action should be taken to address the issue.

As part of this work, under the Better Care Fund, each local area is to develop a local action plan for managing DTOC, including a locally agreed target.

All local areas need to establish their own stretching local DTOC target - agreed between the CCG, Local Authority and relevant acute and community trusts. This target should be reflected in CCG operational plans. The metric for the target should be the same as the national performance metric (average delayed transfers of care 
(delayed days) per 100,000 population (attributable to either NHS, social care or both) per month.

As part of this plan, we want local areas to consider the use of local risk sharing agreements with respect to DTOC, with clear reference to existing guidance and flexibilities. This will be particularly relevant in areas where levels of DTOC are high and rising.

In agreeing the plan, Clinical Commissioning Groups and local authorities should engage with the relevant acute and community trusts and be able to demonstrate that the plan has been agreed with the providers given the need for close joint working on the DTOC issue.

We would expect plans to:

• Set out clear lines of responsibility, accountabilities, and measures of assurance and monitoring;
• Take account of national guidance, particularly the NHS High Impact Interventions for Urgent and Emergency Care, the NHS England Monthly Delayed Transfers of Care Situation Reports Definition and Guidance, and
best practice with regards to reducing DTOC from LGA and ADASS;
• Demonstrate how activities across the whole patient pathway can support improved patient flow and DTOC performance, specifically around admissions avoidance;
• Demonstrate consideration to how all available community capacity within local geographies can be effectively utilised to support safe and effective discharge, with a shared approach to monitoring this capacity;
• Demonstrate how CCGs and Local Authorities are working collaboratively to support sustainable local provider markets, build the right capacity for the needs of the local population, and support the health and care workforce - ideally through joint commissioning and workforce strategies;
• Demonstrate engagement with the independent and voluntary sector providers.

P
age 20



Selected Health and Well Being Board:

Income 

Previously returned data:

Q1 2016/17 Q2 2016/17 Q3 2016/17 Q4 2016/17 Annual Total Pooled Fund

Plan £6,464,350 £6,464,350 £6,464,350 £6,464,351 £25,857,401 £25,857,401

Forecast £6,464,350 £6,464,350 £6,464,350 £6,464,351 £25,857,401

Actual* £6,464,350 £6,464,350 £6,464,350 -

Q4 2016/17 Amended Data:

Q1 2016/17 Q2 2016/17 Q3 2016/17 Q4 2016/17 Annual Total Pooled Fund

Plan £6,464,350 £6,464,350 £6,464,350 £6,464,351 £25,857,401 £25,857,401

Forecast £6,464,350 £6,464,350 £6,464,350 £6,464,351 £25,857,401

Actual* £6,464,350 £6,464,350 £6,464,350 £6,464,351 £25,857,401

Please comment if there is a difference between the forecasted 
/ actual annual totals and the pooled fund 

Plan, forecast, and actual figures for total income into, and total expenditure from, the fund for each quarter to year end (in both cases the year-
end figures should equal the total pooled fund)

There is no difference. 

Nottingham

Please provide, plan, forecast and actual of total income into 
the fund for each quarter to year end (the year figures should 
equal the total pooled fund)

Please provide , plan , forecast, and actual  of total income into 
the fund for each quarter to year end (the year figures should 
equal the total pooled fund)

P
age 21



Expenditure

Previously returned data:

Q1 2016/17 Q2 2016/17 Q3 2016/17 Q4 2016/17 Annual Total Pooled Fund

Plan £6,286,065 £6,523,778 £6,523,778 £6,523,780 £25,857,401 £25,857,401

Forecast £6,286,065 £6,297,538 £6,605,504 £6,668,294 £25,857,401

Actual* £6,286,065 £6,297,538 £6,605,504 -

Q4 2016/17 Amended Data:

Q1 2016/17 Q2 2016/17 Q3 2016/17 Q4 2016/17 Annual Total Pooled Fund

Plan £6,286,065 £6,523,778 £6,523,778 £6,523,780 £25,857,401 £25,857,401

Forecast £6,286,065 £6,297,538 £6,605,504 £6,668,294 £25,857,401

Actual* £6,286,065 £6,297,538 £6,605,504 £6,668,294 £25,857,401

Please comment if there is a difference between the forecasted 
/ actual annual totals and the pooled fund 

Commentary on progress against financial plan:

Footnotes:
*Actual figures should be based on the best available information held by Health and Wellbeing Boards.
Source: For the pooled fund which is pre-populated, the data is from a quarterly collection previously filled in by the HWB.

The pooled fund has been fully spent over the course of the year.

There is no difference.

Please provide, plan, forecast and actual of total expenditure 
from the fund for each quarter to year end (the year figures 
should equal the total pooled fund)

Please provide , plan , forecast, and actual  of total income into 
the fund for each quarter to year end (the year figures should 
equal the total pooled fund)

P
age 22



Selected Health and Well Being Board:

Please provide an update on indicative progress against the metric?

Please provide an update on indicative progress against the metric?

Please provide an update on indicative progress against the metric?

On track for improved performance, but not to meet full target

National and locally defined metrics

Nottingham

Non-Elective Admissions Reduction in non-elective admissions

Commentary on progress: 

Reductions in non-elective admissions are closer to target in Q4 than they were in Q3 but are still below 
the target for the quarter and the year overall. The were 4.7% more admissions for patients aged 80 
years or older than in the equivalent period for the previous year, for the cohort aged 65 years and over 
it was only a 3.3% increase.

Commentary on progress: 

The overall position has seen significant improvement in number of delayed days in Q4. The 
improvement has been mostly impacted on delays reported by NUH.

Delayed Transfers of Care Delayed Transfers of Care (delayed days) from hospital per 100,000 population (aged 18+)

Local performance metric as described in your approved BCF plan

Proportion of the population supported by Assistive Technology

On track for improved performance, but not to meet full target

Commentary on progress: 

Performance in Q4 was below the planned trajectory. The integrated Service has now been operational 
for 3 months, all posts recruited to and a training and promotion programme is being developed by the 
new Service to increase take up rates – including with reablement, hospital discharge and disabled 
childrens services. Over 100 staff have signed up to the training sessions to date and an AT Champions 

No improvement in performance

P
age 23



Please provide an update on indicative progress against the metric?

Please provide an update on indicative progress against the metric?

Please provide an update on indicative progress against the metric?

Footnotes:

For the local performance metric (which is pre-populated), the data is from submission 4 planning returns previously submitted by the HWB.

Commentary on progress: 

The latest survey analysis was provided in January.
On track to meet target

If no local defined patient experience metric has been specified, please give details of the 
local defined patient experience metric now being used.

Local defined patient experience metric as described in your approved BCF plan

Proportion of citizens who have long term conditions (including the frail elderly) reporting improved 
experience of health and social care services. Baseline to be established during October/November 2014 
via six monthly postal surveys. 

For the local defined patient experience metric (which is pre-populated), the data is from submission 4 planning returns previously submitted by the HWB, except in cases where HWBs provided a 
definition of the metric for the first time within the Q1 16-17 template.

Admissions to residential care 

Commentary on progress: 

Reablement

Commentary on progress: 

Rate of permanent admissions to residential care per 100,000 population (65+) 

On track for improved performance, but not to meet full target
There has been an improvement in performance in this metric in Q4 from the increases in admissions 
that were seen in Q3, however the metric is unlikely to meet the full year target.

Proportion of older people (65 and over) who were still at home 91 days after discharge from hospital 
into reablement / rehabilitation services

On track for improved performance, but not to meet full target
Performance within the first 2 months of Q4  dropped from the levels seen in Q3. However an 
improvement in performance was seen in the final month of Q4 and it is expected that this level of 
performance will continue into the new financial year. Anomalies in the method of calculating this metric 
between the service reported by Nottingham CityCare and the Local Authority have been standardised. 

P
age 24



Selected Health and Well Being Board:

Statement: Response: Comments: Please detail any further supporting information for each response

1. The overall delivery of the BCF has improved joint working between 
health and social care in our locality

Strongly Agree

Via the BCF we have established clear joint governance processes which have effectively agreed spend across a complex 
programme over the course of 2 years. This has necessitated significant joint working between the City Council and CCG 
around investment and programme planning and  also around efficiencies, including a jointly commissioned review of 
BCF schemes to inform the 17-19 planning round. 

2. Our BCF schemes were implemented as planned in 2016/17

Agree
Our BCF schemes proved deliverable and were implemented as planned, with the exception of a small number of 7-day 
services pilots which were withdrawn after pilot stage due to low demand.

3. The delivery of our BCF plan in 2016/17 had a positive impact on the 
integration of health and social care in our locality

Agree

Our 16/17 delivery has made demonstrable progress towards integration with the co-location and alignment of our 
health and social care Reablement services, the expansion of our care coordination model including moving Falls services 
into the geographically co-located Care Delivery Group MDTs, the consolidation and redesign of our carers services into a 
new jointly commissioned service, and the very positive evaluation of our Assistive Technology service, a contract held by 

4. The delivery of our BCF plan in 2016/17 has contributed positively to 
managing the levels of Non-Elective Admissions

Agree

Our BCF plan this year has included the consolidation of our Falls service into geographically co-located MDTs under the 
Care Delivery Groups, with specific focus on those in the top 2% at risk of admission. In addition out integrated AT service 
was evaluated as avoiding cost in 54% of cases, with almost half of those including an avoided or deferred hospital 
admission.  

5. The delivery of our BCF plan in 2016/17 has contributed positively to 
managing the levels of Delayed Transfers of Care

Strongly Agree
DTOC levels are consistently low towards the end of the year through both BCF and wider initiatives led by A&E delivery 
board, providing temporary funding to relieve pressures within the urgent care system. Crucially, this year has seen the 
development of pathways to ensure more effective pickup of urgent home care needs through the BCF. 

6. The delivery of our BCF plan in 2016/17 has contributed positively to 
managing the proportion of older people (aged 65 and over) who were 
still at home 91 days after discharge from hospital into 
reablement/rehabilitation services

Agree

The co-location and alignment of of reablement services has contributed positively towards managing the 91 day target, 
with performance improving as the new service embedded throgh the year. The implementation of the Liquid Logic 
system has allowed the development o f improved data sets to monitor a wider range of indicators and understand any 
'blocks' in the pathways. 

7. The delivery of our BCF plan in 2016/17 has contributed positively to 
managing the rate of residential and nursing care home admissions for 
older people (aged 65 and over)

Agree

This year we carried out our dedicated review of residential admissions, and the recommendations are feeding into the 
ongoing Strategic Commissioning Review of residential and nursing care. In addition this year we have funded the 
dedicated Care Homes Nursing Team to move to 7-day, citywide coverage, which will mean respite admissions are less 
likely to convert to permanent admissions.

Nottingham

Year End Feedback on the Better Care Fund in 2016-17

Part 1: Delivery of the Better Care Fund
Please use the below form to indicate what extent you agree with the following statements and then detail any further supporting information in the corresponding comment boxes.

P
age 25



8. What have been your greatest successes in delivering your BCF plan for 
2016-17?

Success 1

Success 2

Success 3

9. What have been your greatest challenges in delivering your BCF plan 
for 2016-17?

Challenge 1

Challenge 2

Challenge 3

Footnotes:

1. Shared vision and commitment
2. Shared leadership and governance
3. Collaborative working relationships
4. Integrated workforce planning 
5. Evidencing impact and measuring success
6. Delivering services across interfaces
7. Digital interoperability and sharing data
8. Joint contracts and payment mechanisms 
9. Sharing risks and benefits 
10. Managing change
Other

DTOC remained a challenge for us this year. Our principal issue in 16-17 was understanding system flow and rooting out the specific issues created by 
external providers (principally home care and care homes). However after dedicated analysis mid-year we were able to reallign internal services to meet 
urgent homecare needs and reduce waits. 

5. Evidencing impact and measuring 
success

Response - Please detail your greatest challenges Response category:

The integration of our Assistive Tech nology service was complex in terms of workforce alignment, with TUPE and pensions arrangements proving 
contractually tricky. However we did manage to resolve these satisfactorily, albeit on a slightly longer timescale than anticipted. 4. Integrated workforce planning 

The integration  of our Reablement services also proved transactionally complex, with challenges around management structure, data sharing and reporting. 
However towards the end of the year we saw the alignment bring improved performance against our 91 day target. 3. Collaborative working relationships

Response - Please detail your greatest successes

This year our focused work on home care waits, involving targeted investment both within and outside of the BCFand service redesign to meet specific 
needs,  has seen them fall to nearly zero. 

Part 2: Successes and Challenges
Please use the below forms to detail up to 3 of your greatest successes, up to 3 of your greatest challenges and then categorise each success/challenge appropriately

The integration of reablement services involving co-location and alignment of health & social care reablement services working to shared processes and 
metrics has delivered improved performance on our 91-day metric towards the end of the year. 

This year we delivered a joint procurement of  all BCF-funded carers' services, involving streamlining 8 services into 3, delivering efficiencies, improved 
outputs and performance, and integrated pathways for both health & social care patients at all levels, including respite services. 3. Collaborative working relationships

Question 11 and 12 are free text responses, but should be assigned to one of the following categories (as used for previous BCF surveys):

5. Evidencing impact and measuring 
success

4. Integrated workforce planning 

Response category:

P
age 26



Selected Health and Well Being Board:

GP Hospital Social Care Community Mental health Specialised palliative
NHS Number is used as the consistent identifier on all relevant 
correspondence relating to the provision of health and care services to an 
individual Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes

Staff in this setting can retrieve relevant information about a service user's 
care from their local system using the NHS Number Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes

Please indicate across which settings relevant service-user information is currently being shared digitally (via Open APIs or interim solutions)
To GP To Hospital To Social Care To Community To Mental health To Specialised palliative

From GP
Shared via interim 
solution

Shared via interim 
solution

Not currently shared 
digitally

Shared via interim 
solution

Shared via interim 
solution Shared via interim solution

From Hospital
Shared via interim 
solution

Shared via interim 
solution

Not currently shared 
digitally

Shared via interim 
solution

Shared via interim 
solution Shared via interim solution

From Social Care
Not currently shared 
digitally

Shared via interim 
solution Shared via Open API

Shared via interim 
solution

Shared via interim 
solution

Not currently shared 
digitally

From Community
Shared via interim 
solution

Shared via interim 
solution

Not currently shared 
digitally

Shared via interim 
solution

Shared via interim 
solution Shared via interim solution

From Mental Health
Not currently shared 
digitally

Not currently shared 
digitally

Shared via interim 
solution

Not currently shared 
digitally

Not currently shared 
digitally

Not currently shared 
digitally

From Specialised Palliative
Shared via interim 
solution

Shared via interim 
solution

Not currently shared 
digitally

Shared via interim 
solution

Not currently shared 
digitally Shared via interim solution

In each of the following settings, please indicate progress towards instillation of Open APIs to enable information to be shared with other organisations
GP Hospital Social Care Community Mental health Specialised palliative

Progress status Installed (not live) Installed (not live) Installed (not live) Unavailable In development In development
Projected 'go-live' date (dd/mm/yy) 01/10/17 01/10/17

Additional Measures

Nottingham

1. Proposed Metric: Use of NHS number as primary identifier across care settings

2. Proposed Metric: Availability of Open APIs across care settings

P
age 27



Is there a Digital Integrated Care Record pilot currently underway in your 
Health and Wellbeing Board area? Pilot currently underway

Total number of PHBs in place at the end of the quarter 183
Rate per 100,000 population 57

Number of new PHBs put in place during the quarter 8
Number of existing PHBs stopped during the quarter 8
Of all residents using PHBs at the end of the quarter, what proportion are 
in receipt of NHS Continuing Healthcare (%) 30%

Population (Mid 2017) 322,215

Are integrated care teams (any team comprising both health and social 
care staff) in place and operating in the non-acute setting?

Yes - throughout the 
Health and Wellbeing 
Board area

Are integrated care teams (any team comprising both health and social 
care staff) in place and operating in the acute setting?

Yes - throughout the 
Health and Wellbeing 
Board area

Footnotes:

4. Proposed Metric: Number of Personal Health Budgets per 100,000 population

3. Proposed Metric: Is there a Digital Integrated Care Record pilot currently underway?

5. Proposed Metric: Use and prevalence of Multi-Disciplinary/Integrated Care Teams

Population projections are based on Subnational Population Projections, Interim 2014-based (published May 2016).

Population figures were updated to the mid-year 2017 estimates as we moved into the new calendar year.
http://www.ons.gov.uk/peoplepopulationandcommunity/populationandmigration/populationprojections/datasets/localauthoritiesinenglandz1

P
age 28



Selected Health and Well Being Board:

29,689    

Please provide a brief narrative on overall progress, reflecting on performance in Q4 16/17 and the year as a whole. A recommendation would be to offer 
a narrative around the stocktake themes as below: 
Highlights and successes
What would you consider to be your most significant area of success, or development since the last quarter? What has contributed to this improvement?
Challenges and concerns 
Does the information on National Conditions and Supporting metrics point to any issues or areas of improvement? Are there any new anticipated 
challenges for the coming quarter?
Potential actions and support 
What actions could be taken and what support could be offered to address performance challenges and capitalise on successes for subsequent quarters? 

Nottingham

Highlights and successes
This year we have delivered:
• An expanded and enhanced Care Coordination service with specialist roles for care homes, homeless support and discharge coordination now 
developed and embedded. The service now supports community Multi-Disciplinary Team (MDT) meetings in each GP practice across 8 geographically-
based Care Delivery Groups (CDGs), working to support the top 2% of patients at risk of admission. Our MDT model now includes the Falls service, now 
aligned to neighbourhood teams and helping manage the risk of admission due to falls, with further integration and geographical co-location planned for 
the coming year.
• A fully integrated single Assistive Technology (AT) service, now embedded with improved performance against target as the year progressed. The 
external evaluation of our AT service found it performing strongly with return of £3.51 in cost avoidance for every £1 spent. 

                     
  

                       
                  

                         
                         

   
     
                     
        

  
                   

                      
                       

   
                   
                      

                    

Narrative

Remaining Characters

P
age 29



  
    

                    
                  

                          
                      

  
                     

                     
• An aligned and co-located Health & Social Care Reablement service with shared processes and targets, delivering improved performance against our 91-
day target 
• A joint reprocurement of all BCF-funded carers' services. This involved streamlining 8 services into 3, delivering an efficiency of £85k annually, improved 
outputs and performance, and integrated pathways for both health & social care patients at all levels, including respite services.
We also won the HSJ award for Improved Partnerships between Health and Local Government in November 2016, based on the work of the BCF. We 
close the year in an encouraging position with regard to performance. In the second half of the year, following periods of disruption linked to service 
integration, we have delivered:
• Improved DTOC performance against target
• Reduced Homecare waits – brought down to nearly zero with analysis of system flow, followed by targeted investment and service redesign
• Improved performance against the 91-day reablement target 
Challenges and concerns:
Our major challenges this year have been largely transactional, with contractual workforce arrangements – particularly TUPE, pensions, and management 
structures – proving time consuming, though temporary, barriers to integration. At the start of the year DTOC remained a challenge, though dedicated 
analysis of system flow, then targeted work and investment, have started to improve performance and we close the year in an improved position. 
Potential actions and support:
Regarding potential actions to support improved performance, we are confident that the consistently good performance against our Social Care 
Outcomes target and the improved performance of late against our Reablement and DTOC targets will continue. Our plans to further integrate Falls 
services will help support our performance around acute admissions management, and the work of the Strategic Commissioning Review and our 

P
age 30


	Agenda
	3 Minutes
	4 Better Care Fund Quarterly Performance Report
	HWB CSC 13 09 17 BCF Q4 Performance Report - Appendix 1
	Guidance
	Checklist
	1. Cover
	2. Budget Arrangements
	3. National Conditions
	4. I&E
	5. Supporting Metrics
	6. Year End Feedback
	7. Additional Measures
	8. Narrative



